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The 230-acre Garden is a scenic area of rolling country. Through it runs the Bronx 
River with its dramatic 75-foot gorge. Among its many notable features are the 40-acre 
virgin hemlock forest of unimpaired integrity that preserves the scene as it was at the 
time of the first white settlement in that area, the Pinetum of over 200 specimens of 
evergreens, the Rose Garden having 80 species and 400 cultivars of roses, and the 
exceedingly attractive 1-acre Thompson Rock Garden.

The Italian Renaissance museum building, designed by Robert W. Gibson, is well main­ 
tained, its 308-foot front facade unchanged since its construction. It has been 
criticized for not being an artistic success, particularly because of a story above 
the main cornice producing a high-shouldered effect. However, the imposing facade 
and the landscaping, highlighted by the superb Fountain of Life, created by Carl Tefft 
in 1905, presents a pleasing design. Modern additions have been made at one end and 
at the rear of the building, but the average visitor does not see these. Vandals have 
done some damage to the Tefft fountain, but it still conveys the strength and beauty 
that once impressed Augustus St. Gaudens.

The 512-foot long glass conservatory, with its 80-foot high central dome, is 
essentially unchanged since it too was designed by Robert W. Gibson. Some of the 
original tracery, particularly at the entrances, has been removed and the design 
modified over the years. It is presently closed for renovations. Between it and the 
museum building a third large structure, the microbiological laboratory, was con­ 
structed in 1956. Too large to be unobtrusive, this building nevertheless fits its 
setting well.

The land set aside for the Garden included the former estate of Peter Lorillard, who 
accumulated a fortune in the tobacco industry. Although the palatial residence 
burned in 1923, three of the estate's buildings still stand. The gatehouse is 
unused today, its windows being boarded up. The maintenance staff now uses the former 
stables for work space and tool storage. The snuff mill, erected in 1840, has been 
restored structurally, with steel beams added to its interior; and the ground floor 
has been converted into a cafeteria for visitor use.

The integrity of the buildings and the grounds is extremely good. Despite the 
evolution of an active program the appearance of the Garden is still essentially that 
of its youth. New buildings will be added and new programs will be undertaken, but 
the guiding principle of its directors has been and is to preserve both the appearance 
and the spirit that its founders instilled.
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Established in 1896, The New York Botanical Garden, at the intersection of Southern and 
Bedford Park Boulevards, rapidly became one of the leading botanical gardens of the world. 
Its early growth was due to the energetic leadership of its first director, Nathaniel Lord 
Britton, supported by the Torrey Botanical Club. The Garden has developed one of the 
world's largest herbariums, three million specimens; research laboratories stressing 
ecology, plant geography, plant physiology, and systematic botany; the Western Hemi­ 
sphere's largest botanical library; an educational program ranging from children's 
gardening classes to graduate training; and conservatories having two acres under glass. 
Its programs in research, publishing, and education have become internationally recognized,

The 230-acre Garden is a scenic area of rolling country through which runs the Bronx River, 
Notable features that date from the inception of the Botanical Garden are: the 40-acre 
virgin hemlock forest and the original conservatory and museum building.

History

In 1888 Professor and Mrs. Nathaniel Lord Britton presented an illustrated lecture to the 
Torrey Botanical Club on the Royal Botanic Gardens at Kew, London, England, where they had 
been recent visitors. The Brittons urged that a similar botanical garden be established 
in New York, there being only one major garden in the United States, the Missouri Botan­ 
ical Garden (Shaw's Garden) established in 1859 in St. Louis.

Stimulated by the Brittons' lecture, the Torrey Botanical Club enlisted the support of 
prominent New Yorkers to solicit subscriptions. In April 1891, Governor David B. Hill 
signed a bill providing for the establishment of a botanical garden in Bronx Park, and 
by 1897 the Board of Managers had raised sufficient funds to begin work. Some opposition 
arose over the choice of the site because of the fear that such an institution would 
interfere with the natural beauty of the area. However, plans went ahead. In 1896, 
Professor Britton had become its first director and four years later the museum building 
and the conservatory opened their doors to the public. Today, the garden is a privately 
endowed, nonprofit corporation; the city of New York funds the maintenance costs.

From the beginning, The New York Botanical Garden has fulfilled the requirements of its 
Act of Incorporation. In the field of research it has been outstandingly active. The 
herbarium, a basic research tool, began with Columbia College's gift of the Torrey 
herbarium and the acquisition of the August Jaeger herbarium of mosses. Staff taxono- 
mists collected specimens in North, Central, and South America, including the arctic 
regions. Today the herbarium contains more than three million specimens making it the
largest in the Western Hemisphere and one of the leading herbariums in the world. In
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the collection are more than 5,000 specimens discovered and named by staff taxonomists

The Garden, emphasizing pure research over applied, but not excluding the latter, has 
achieved prominence in various fields of research. It is particularly outstanding in 
systematic botany, wherein Britton was a leader in developing and gaining support for 
the superior "American" code of botanical nomenclature over the international system. 
During the past 70 years, the Garden has published more works in this field than has 
any other institution. Extensive research is also carried on in plant physiology, 
plant pathology, paleobotany, and ecology. In applied research the Garden has dis­ 
covered the process for "puffing" rice, seedless grapes, antibiotics, and a fast- 
growing poplar for reforestation.

Closely associated with the herbariums and the laboratories is the botanical library. 
Starting with 2,500 volumes, the library tripled its size in 1899 when Columbia 
College donated its 5,000-volume botanical collection. Enriched by donations and 
purchases of rare European and Far Eastern botanical works and growing through a 
steady acquisition program, the library today is the largest botanical library under 
one roof in the Western Hemisphere. It presently contains 70,000 bound volumes and 
more than 300,000 manuscripts and printed documents. Its collections include 
botanical works dating from the 18th century and correspondence of such famed 
scientists as Charles Darwin. Scholars from all over North America and overseas, 
privately engaged or in government service, have long regarded it as a lodestone for 
botanical studies. Through extensive inter-library loans its riches have been made 
available on an international basis.

Since its beginning, The New York Botanical Garden has fulfilled its role in 
"instruction of the people." Its directors and members of its staff have composed 
a large part of Columbia's Department of Botany and the Garden is responsible for 
the training of students seeking advanced degrees in botany. In more recent years, 
graduate students of Fordham and Rutgers have also been accepted into this program. 
Also, postgraduate students pursue their research here. The Garden began early a 
series of free lectures that has developed into a wide scope of instruction for 
teachers, children, and adults, including a two-year course in botany, practical 
and landscape gardening, nature walks, and gardening classes for children. Few, 
if any, similar institutions have provided so comprehensive an educational program 
that provides for all groups from elementary school children to postgraduate students.

The large museum, occupying the entire main floor of the museum building, is devoted 
solely to botany. Within seven years after the building was open, a comprehensive 
exhibition on economic botany was fully developed for the instruction of students 
and general visitors. Among the exhibits were foods, fibers, drugs, and woods. 
Later, the museum evolved into two major exhibitions: Economic and Food Plants, and 
Plant Families, there being today 65 exhibits.
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The glass conservatory occupies one acre of ground. It is the largest conservatory 
for public display in the United States. Its 15 compartments provide a wide range of 
climatic conditions in which grow a variety of plant families, including the famous 
90-foot palms, orchids, ferns, tropical and desert plants. This extensive collection, 
like the herbarium and the library, contributes greatly to the superlative research 
and educational programs as well as to visitor enjoyment. Another acre of hothouses 
is used for propagation of plants.

In addition to publishing the largest number of manuals on plant identification, the 
Garden is unsurpassed by similar institutions in the world in its publication of 
articles, periodicals, and books on botany. It is the publisher of a large number 
of esteemed periodicals such as Mycologia, Brittonia, Economic Botany, Addisonia, and 
The Garden Journal of the New York Botanical Garden. The value of its 70 years of 
significant contribution to scientific literature is illustrated by the current 
publication of Dr. H. W. Rickett's five-volume work, Wild Flowers of the United States, 
"the first definitive work on wild flowers" to appear in the United States.

The New York Botanical Garden is an active growing institution. Its already signifi­ 
cant achievements will increase in the future. Concerned with the world population 
explosion and prospects of food shortages, its researchers are active in projects 
involving ecology, radiation effects, utilization of fungi and algae for producing 
protein, and many more. The institution's Master Plan calls for the enlargement of 
the museum building by the addition of wings, which will provide additional space for 
education and exhibit programs, a floral conservatory of unique design, and a visitor 
center for the orientation of the public.

Impressive in its parts—the largest herbarium and botanical library in the Nation, 
the extensive educational, publishing, and research programs—The New York Botanical 
Garden, in the span of 70 years, has built upon the programs instituted by its first 
director to become the largest and most significant of the botanical gardens in the 
United States.
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Verbal Boundary Description

The landmark boundaries are coterminus with the present Botanical Garden boundaries, 
Beginning at the intersection of the eastern curb of Southern Boulevard and the 
northern curb of Fordham Road, proceed north along said curb of Southern Boulevard 
to its termination in the east-west access road to the Bronx River Parkway. Thence 
continue east along the southern curb of said access road and then south still fol­ 
lowing said curb as it merges with the western curb of the Bronx River Parkway. 
Continue south along said curb of the parkway to its juncture with the western curb 
of the access road running into Fordham Road. The boundary follows said curb of 
the access road to its merger with the northern curb of Fordham Road and continues 
west along said curb of Fordham Road to the point of origin.

These boundaries enclose the New York Botanical Gardens, while excluding the post- 
historic highways and those portions of Bronx Park which are not in use by the 
Botanical Gardens.


